B.R.GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

[CIN: U04520MP2005PLCO1T479]

Address: 3-A, Agrawal Nagar Indore MP 452001 IN
Email Id: dasharpthibepinir.com

Contact: 0731 2403831

GSTIN: 23AACCRO02Z4EIZE

NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of B.R.Goyal Infrastructure Limited will he
held as per the schedule given below:

Day & Date : Samrday, 30% September, 2023
Time : 1:00 M.
Venue : 3-A, Agrawal Nagar, Indore MP 452001 IN

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

:

ADOPTION OF FINAL ACCOUNTS;

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the Cash Flow Statement along with
the notes and Schedules for the year ended on that date together with the Report of Directors' and
Audirors' thereon;

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the vear ended March 31, 2023 and the Cash
Flow Statement along with the notes and Schedules for the yvear ended on that date and the reports
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are herehy
considered and adopted.”

RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR RETIRE BY ROTATION:
The Chairman proposed the following resolution to be adopted as an Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Gopal Goyal, Whole-time Director of the Company who retires by rotation

and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of
the Company subject to retire by rotation.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

RATIFICATION OF COST AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION FOR FY 2023-24:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisians, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
{including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of INR 70,000/- (Indian Rupees Seventy Thousand only)



1.

plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-packet expenses, payable to M/s Dhananjay V.
Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration Number 000030), who are re-appointed hy
the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors, to conduct the audit of the cost ricords
maintained by the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024,

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Commirtes
thereof) be and Is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper, or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

APPROVAL FOR TRANSACTIONS ( JANS, |

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resoluticn as a
Special Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 and other applicable provisions, if any
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions and
permissions as may be necessary and in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed in this
regard. the consent of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Board” which term shall include any
Committee constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise its
powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution), for giving loan(s) in one or more
tranches including loan represented hy way of book debt (the “Loan™) to, andfor giving of
guarantee(s), and/or providing of security(ies) in connection with any Loan aken/to be taken by
any entity which is a Subsidiary or Associate or Joint Venture or group entity of the Company or any
other person in which any of the Directors of the Company is deemed to be interested as specifed
in the explanation to sub-section 2 of section 185 of the Act [collectively referred to as the
“Entities”), of an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 400,00 Crore (Rupees Four Hundred Crore
Only) during the financial year 2023-24 and onwards, in its absolute discretion deem benaficial and
in the best interest of the Company,

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of
Directors and/or Chiel Financial Officer of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized 1o
negotiate, finalize and agree to the termg and conditions of the aforesaid Loans / Guarantees /
Securities, and to take all necessary steps, to execute all such documents, instruments and writings
and ta do all necessary acts, deeds and things in order to comply with all the legal and procedural
formalities and to do all such acts, deeds or things incidental or expedient thereto and as the Board
miy think fit and suitable.”

To consider and il thought fit, to pass with or without medification(s), the following Resalutionas
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the section 188 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act”) read with Rules made there under, other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if
any, (including any statutary modification(s) or amendment(s) or resgnactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force], and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(sjas may be necessary
from time to time and basis the approval and recommendation of the Audit Committee and the



Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members of the Company be and Is hereby
accorded to the Company to enter/continue to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s)/
Contract{s)/ Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) [whether by way of an individual transacton or
transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with entities falling within the
definition of ‘Related Party’ under Section 2(76) of the Act, in the course of the business on such
material terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to this Resolution and as
may be mutually agreed between related parties and the Company, for each of the financial years
(FY). such that the maximum value of the Related Party Tramsactions with such parties, in
aggregate, does not exceed value as specified under each category for each financial year, provided
that the said contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary course
of business of the Company and in respect of transactions with related parties under Section 2{76)
of the Act, ave at arm's length basis.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee of the Company and any duly
canstituted/to be constituted Committee of Directors thereof to exercise its powers ncluding
powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, decds,
matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be
required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary documents, contract(s),
scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other documents as may be required, seeking all necessary
approvals ta give effect to this resolution, for and on behall of the Company and settling all such
issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions
from powers herein conferred to; without being required to seck further consent or appraval of
the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the autharity af this resolution,

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter referred
to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all

respects.”
//CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//
FOR- B.R.GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN: UO4520MPZ005PLC017479]
6 ﬁ‘hu ‘Eﬂ
BRI] KISHORE GOYAL G'DP LGOYAL
PLACE: INDORE [DIN: 00012185) [DIN: 00012164]

DATE: 01.08.2023 MANAGING DIRECTOR WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR



EI

Notes:

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint proxy(ies) to attend and
viute instead of himself. Proxy need nat be a member of the company. Prongy in arder to be valid should

be deposited with the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before the meeting [Proxy form
enclosed].

Explanatory statement with respect to the above items of Special Business is enclosed herewith forming
part of the notice,

Members /Proxies should fill the Attendance slip for attending the meeting.



As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["Act”) read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 ("the Rules"), as amended from time to time, the Company is required Lo
have an-audit of its cost records conducted by a cost accountant in practice for products covered under
the Companies [Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, The Board, based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, has approved the re-appointment of M/s. Dhananjay V. Joshl & Associates, Cost
Accountants, (Firm Registration Number 000030), as the Cost Auditors te conduct the audit of the cost
recards of the Company, for the financial year ending March 31, 2024, at a remuneration of INR 70,000 /-
plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of reasonable out- of pocket expenses,

In accordance with Section 148(2) of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors, is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the
consent of the Members 1s sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as ser out in Item No. 3 of the
Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors, for the financial year ending
March 31, 2024,

The Board commends ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors; as set oul in ltemi No. 3 of the Notice
for approval by the Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Nane of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives is, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution,

LTEM NO: 04;

Pursuant to Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), a Company may advance any loan
including any lean represented by book debt or give any puarantee or provide any security in
connection with any loan taken by any entlty (said entity{ies) covered under the category of ‘a person in
whom any of the divector of the Company is interested’ as specified in the explanation to Section
185(2)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013, after passinga Special Resolution in the general meeting.

It ls proposed to make loan(s) including loan represented by way of Book Debt to, and/or give
puarantee(s) and/or provide security(ies) in connection with any loan taken/to be taken by the
Subsidiary Companies or Associate or Joint Venture or group entity or any other person in whom any of
the Director of the Company is deemed to be interested as specified in the explanation to Section
185(2)(b) of the At (collectively referred to as the “Entities"), from time to time, for the purpose of
capital expenditure of the projects and/or working capital requirements including purchase of fixed
assets a8 may be required from time to time for its principal business activities and other matters
connected and incidental thereto, within the limits as mentioned in the:ftem no, 04 of the notice.

The details of transactions that require approval are given helow:

s Name of the Nature of
No. Party Transaction Purpose of Transaction
For the purpose of capital expenditure of the
1. BRGIL LLP Unsecured Loan | projects and/or working capital requirements
| including purchase of fived asseéts as may be |




required from time to time for principal business |
activities and other matters connected and
incidental thereto, |

The members may note that Board of Directors would carefully evaluate the proposals and provide such
loan, guarantee or security through deployment of funds out of internal resources/accruals and /or any
other appropriate sources, from time to time, and the proposed loan shall be at such rate of interest as
agreed by the parties in the best interest of the Company and shall be used by the barrowing company
[or its principal business activities only.

The Board of Directors recommend the resnlution set forth in Item no. 04 of the notice for vour approval
asa Special Resolution.

Nene of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned with or
interested, [inancially or otherwise (n the said resolution except to the extent of their shareholding in
the Company, if any.

ITEM NO: 05:

Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”), the Compariies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Related Party Transactions as mentioned in clause
(2) to (g) of the said section require a company to obtain approval of the Board of Directors and
subsequently the Sharcholders of the Company by way of Ordinary resolution in case the value of the
Related party transactions exceeds the stipulated thresholds prescribed in Rule 15 of the sald Rules and
transactions other than in Ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.

In view of the changes in the threshold for determining the related party transactions that require prior
shareholder approval and considering the fact that the list of related parties will change dynamically
with no action on the part of the Company and to facilitate seamless contracting and rendering/availing
of product and services belween the Company and “related parties”, the Company seeks the approval of
the shareholders to approve entering into contracts/arrangements within the thresholds and conditions
mentioned in the resolution. All the contracts/arrangements and the transactions with “related parties”
are reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee,

The details of transactions that require approval are given below:

:'; Description Particulars
Name of the | Brii Kishore | Rajendra :
01. related party Goyal Kumar Goyal Gopal Goyal BRGIL LLF
Mr. Brij | Mr. Rajendra
Same of the Kishore Goyal | Kumar  Goval Mr, ‘Gupal Mr. Brij Kishore
director or key | : Goyal is the ;
: is the | is the Whaole- Goyal ig the
managerial Whole-Time ;
0z, : Managing Time Directur Managing Director
personnel who | Director  and S
. Director and | and Promotoer .| and Promaoter of the
is related, i Promoter ol
e Promoter of |'of the Sk s Company.,
i the Company, | Company. PRy |
Nature of Entities with
Relationship Common Directors,
03. | |including Director and Promoter Shareholder, Shareholding  and
nature of its having  significant
| interest influgnce of



(financial or | Directors and
otherwise)] Fromaoter
Shareholders of the
Company, (By virtue
of befng a Designated
Partnerin the LLP)
[a) To Purchase,
Sale, Trade and
otherwise Degl in
Goods and Services
between the
Company and each
of the Related Party
mentioned above of
uple an aggregate
amount  of  INKE
20000 Crore in any
() To Purchase, Sale, Trade and otherwise Deal Fﬁ['ancml Year and
in Goods and Services between the Company and thereaﬂfr.
cach of the Related Party mentioned above of \B)] Trasster of any
Nature, upto an aggregate amount of INR 100.00 Crorein | [0 ces:  SEIVICEs
duration/tenn | any Financial Year and thereafter. ol obligatians
re, material | (b) Transfer of any resources, services or Eﬂmeen 4 th:
terms, obligations between the Company and each of the r&nl'll}pan};’ i
04. | monetary Related Party mentioned above o meel the of the Reiated Party
value and | business objectives)/ requirements of the vangoon ahﬂf':e o
particulars of | Company upto an aggregate ameunt of [INR Fe .LhE Bl
contract/ 100.00 Crore in any  Financial Year and abisctives) .
arrangement thereafter. Eﬂqmmments of the
(t] Unsecured Loan upto an amount of INR nnmpﬂnt:n; a:_:_:::::manr:_
100.00 Crove, BETEH :
(d) Rent amounting to INR 10.00 Crore. Yk SR Creire:dn
any Financial Year
and therealter.
() Unsecured Loan
upto an amount of
INR 200.00 Crore.
{d) Rent amounting
to INR 10.00 Crore,
{¢) Other recurring
transactions for
furtherance of
business
Any other | All important information forms part of the statement setting out
05. | relevant material facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, forming part of this
| information Notice.
LSr.
No. Description Particulars
oL E:]:::d ::ﬂ:rhe Usha Goyal Vinita Goyal Sarla Goyal Uppal Gayal |
| 02. | Name of the | Mr. Gopal | Mr. Brij Kishore | Mr. Rajendra | Mr.  Rajendra |




director or key | Goyal is the | Goyal is the | Kumar Goyal s | Kumar Goyal is
managerial Whale-Time Managing the Whole-Time | the Whaole-Time
personnel whe | Director and | Director  and | Director and | Director  and
is related, il | Promoter of | Promoter of the | Promoter of the | Promoter of the
any; the Company. | Company, Lompany. Company.
Nature of
Relationship
fincluding
03. | nature of its | Relatives of Koy Management Personnel.
interest
(financial or
otherwtse)] | =
Nature, (a) To Purchase, Sale, Trade and otherwise Deal in Goods and Services |
duration/ between the Company and each of the Refated Party mentioned above of
tenure, upio d@n aggregate amount of INR 100.00 Crore in any Financial Year and
material therealter.
04, | tETmS, (b] Transler of any resources, services or obligations between the
" | monetary Company and éach of the Related Party mentioned above to meet the
vilue and | business objectives/ requirements of the Company upto an aggregate
particulars  of | amount of INR 100.00 Crore in any Financial Year and thereafter.
contract/ {c) Unsecured Loan upto an amount of INR 100,00 Crore.
= arrangement | (d) Rent amounting to INR 10.00 Crore. - _
Any other | All important information lorms part of the statement setting out
05. | relevant miaterial facts, pursuant tp Section L02(1) of the Act, forming part of this
information Natice.
sr. ;
Description Particulars
No.
Geeta Shree Toll Kanta
— New Geeta Shree Toll Kanta
- Maa Renuka Filling Station
- Shanti Constructions
— Super Agro
— Sagar Ventures
— BRG Cement Products
01. :I;:Ed n: the t;a_-;h :}E}ru]] :gzzzhﬁﬁzirgy LLP {eslier Maa
' P | ppel oy Renuka Trading)
— BRG Sons
= BRGIPL JV KTIL LLP
—BR DSR lateri Shamshabad Private
Limited
— Maa Renuka Industries
= Maa Renulia SCM
— Shanti Petrochem LLP
Raiia of ks Mr, ﬁri_] Kishore Goyal is the | Mr, Gopal Goyal iz the Whole-Time
director or key Managing  Director  and | Director and Promoter of the Company.
managerial Promater of the Company, M_r. Ra;endra_ Kumar Goyal is the Whole-
02, Mr. Rajendra Komar Govalis | Time Director and Promoter of the
personnel who :
is, related, If the: Whole-Time Director | Company, _ i _
S, and Promoter of the | Mr. Brij Kishore Goval is the Managing
Company. Director and Promater of the Company,




03.

05.

Nature of

ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ:fgl‘l ip . Entities: with Common  Directors,
nature of its Relatives of Key | Sharcholding and having  significant
fibreat Management Persaonnel, influence of Directors and Promoter
(financial  or Shareholders of the Company.
otherwise]] |
Natice: [a) To Purchase, Sale, Trade and otherwise Deal in Goods and Services
duration jen between the Company and each of the Related Party mentioned above of
R upta an ageregate amount af INR 100.00 Crore in any Financial Year and
i thcrnat’mr.l
monetary (b} Transfer of any resources, services or ohligations: between the
valie Gl Company and each of the Related Party mentioned above 1o mest the
particilary. of husiness objectives) requirements of the Company upto an aggregate
contract] amount of [NR 100.00 Crore In any Financial Year and thereaiter,
STrangement (€] Unsecured Loan uplo an amount of INR 100,00 Crore.

{d) Rent amounting to INR 10,00 Crore. I
Any other | All important information forms part of the statement setting out
relevant material facts, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, forming part of this

| information Notice.

Mane of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or its respective relatives, other than

as mentioned above, is concerned or interested, in the resolution.

The said transaction(s) fcontract{s) /arrangement(s) have been recommended by the Audit Committee

and Board of Divectors of the Company for consideration and approval by the Members,

It is pertinent to note that no related party shall vote to approve this Resolution whether the entity isa

related party to the particular transaction or not.

PLACE: INDORE
DATE: 01.08.2023

{/CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//
FOR- B.R.GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN: U04520MP2Z005PLE017479)

BRIj mﬁr{:‘;E GOYAL

[DIN: 00012185)
MANAGING DIRECTOR

1 "Eri.u!
GﬂPA&L GOY I-
[DIN: 00012164]
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR



DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1o,
The Members of
B.R. GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Your Directors are presenting the Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for
the financial year ended, 315t March, 2023

1. FINANCI GHLIGHTS:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in Indla {Indian GAAPR), The financial highlights of your Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023 are summarized below:

{Amount in Rs. Lacs.)

— i

_ Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
| Revenue from Operations N 34,525.78 20,839.24
Other income [ 589.38 361.93
Total Revenue 3511916 21,201.17
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components 10,251.49 8,834.33
consumad
{Increase)/decrease in inventories ' (424.13) {1,003.63)
I"I::m_plnvee I:n;r_mfit EXPENSES 1!]_6515 i 793.53
| Oparating and other expenses ' 20,963,00 10324.88
_Total Expenses 31,8586 | 18,949.11
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization and prior period 3,260.69 2,252.06
adjustments S — T T
_Depreciation and amaortization expenses 473.85 | _ __ 51%5E
Finance cost 679.01 ¥39.05
Profit before tax and prior period 1
adjustments ZiATR3 e
Tax Expense - 1 1
Current Tax 492.16 217.53
Earlier Year Taxes o a | 0
Deferred Tax (2.47) 34.56
Total Tax Expense e i - ] 489.69 252.08
Profit after Tax 1,618.14 747.98 |
F'_rﬂrferind Expenses 0 790 |
Net Profit B 1,618.14 740,08 |
| Earnings per share (Rs.): 1861 B.51
Diluted (Rs.) ) 18,61 851

"NOTE; Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclossified where necessary to confirm this year's
classification,

2. OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

The highlights of the Company's petfarmance are as under: [Amount in Rs. Lacs)



= Revenue from operations increased from Rs. 20,839.24/- in the year 2021-22 to Rs, 34,529.78/- in the year
2022-23.

Y

Total Income af the Company increased from Rs. 21,201.17/- in the year 2021-22 to Rs. 35,119.16/- in the
year 2022-23,

# The Company has earned a Net Profit of Rs. 1,618.14/- compared of Rs: 740.08/- in the previous year.

# Basic Earnings per share (EP5)Is Rs. 18.61/- per share compared to Rs. 8 51/-as previous year.

CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which

occurred between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this
repart.

DIVIDEND:

With a view to strengthen the financial position and the future growth of the Company, your Directors have not
recommended payment of dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,

SHARE CAPITAL AND NG EREIN:

The pald up equity share capital as at March 31, 2023 was Rs.8,69,63,520/- divided Into B,696,352 Equity
Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue or
preferential issue etc. during the year. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat
equity shares nor has it granted any stock options.

RESERVE:

As on March 31, 2023 the reserves and surplus has increased to Rs. 9,490.00/- as compared to Rs. Rs.7,871.86/-
achieved during the last year.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has an Internal Control Systern, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations.

ANNUAL RETURN

As provided under Section 92(3) read with relevant Rules of the Companles Act, 2013, the extract of the annual
return |s glven in ANNEXURE "I" in the prescribed Form MGT-2, which forms part of this report, though section
134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule has required only address of web link for annual return
w.e.f 31-07-2018.

A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed
form, which will be filed with the Registrar of Companies.



10.

13.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directars, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, cenfirm that!

a] In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting
standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to the Act, have been followed and there are
no mater|al departures from the same:

b] The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made [udgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date:;

¢} The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting recards in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

d] The Rirectors have prapared the annual accounts ana ‘going cancern’ basis;

e} The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL;

The Board is of the opinion that there exist adequate internal cantrol commensurate with the size & operation
of the company.

. RISK_ MANAGEMENT;

Risk is the events, sltuations or circumstances which may lead to negative conseguences on the Company's
Businesses, Risk Management s structured approach to manage uncertainty. A formal enterprise wide
approach to risk management Is adopted by the company and key risks will now be managed within a unitary
framewaork.

The Audit Committee, has been designated by the Board for reviewing the adequacy af the risk management
framework of the Company, the key risks associated with the businesses of the Company and the measures are
taken in place to minimize the same and thereafter the details are presented to and discussed at the Board
Meetings.

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY:

The Company's Board of Directors, pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9} of the Company's Act 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and it Powers) Rules, 2014 has framed “Wigil
Mechanism Policy” for Directors and Empioyees of the Company. The policy is to

Provide Mechanism, which ensures adequate safeguards to employees and Directors from any victimization on
rising of concerns of any violations of legal ar regulatory requirements, incarrect ar misrepresentation of any,
financial statements and reports and so on.

DIRECTORS AND KMP's CHANGES, IF ANY:

| S.No. [ Directors Name DIN/PAN Designation =
1. | Rajendra Kumar Goyal | 00012150 | Whale-time Director

2. | Gopal Goyal 00012164 Whoie-time Director

3. Erijicléiipre Goyal Q0012185 Managing Director




4. | Khushboo Patodi 08984343 ___Independent Weman Director
5. | Mohit Bhandari 08139828 Independent Director

| B Dasharath Tomar ACLPT7677B | Chief Einancial Officer

| 7. |Sheetal Meena ) EKAPM3G17P | Company Secretary

14. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The following Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2022-23.

5.No. DATE OF MEETING BOARD STRENGTH 'NO. OF DIRECTORS
PRESENT

11.04.2022
25.07.2022
18.08.2022
23.08.2022
31.08.2022
03.10.2022
02.11,2022
15.12.2Q022
02.01.2073
02,02.2023
14.03.2023
25.03.2023
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15. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149(6] OF THE
C NIES 13:

All the independent Directors have given their declaration of Independence stating that they meet the criterla
of Independence as prescribed under the section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 during the vear 2022-73,

16. STATEMENT INTEGRI P E AND EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As per Rule 8{5){lii)(a] of the Company {Accounts) Rules, 2014 the company has received declarations from all
the Independent Directors regarding their Integrity, Expertise and Experience,

17. AUDITORS"

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the rules framed there under, M/s. Lopa Verma &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennal were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company from the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 30th September, 2023 for a period of
five years. The Company has recelved an eligibility letter from them that their appointment continues to be in
confarmity conditions specified in Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013,

18, RS’ RE AND NO FRAUD DETECTION

The Board has appointed M/s. Lopa Verma & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennal to conduct the
statutory Audit for the year 2022-23. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report
which reguire any clarificaticn/ explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-explanatory, and needs
no further explanation. Further the Auditars' Report for the financial year ended, 315t March, 2023 is annexed
herewith for your kind perusal and information.



The auditor’s report is self-explanatory and there are na observations, qualifications made by the Statutory
Auditors in their report. No fraud u/s 143(12) was reported by the auditer.

18. COST AUDITOR & THEIR REPORTS:

The Company has appointed M/s Vijay P. Joshi & Associates; Cost Accountant, as on 11" April, 2022 the Cost
Auditors of the Company for the year 2022-23 and the Cost Audit Report shall be filed to the Central Govt.
within the stipulated time.

20. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The company has devised propar systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of |ndia and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectivaly,

21. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared
and paid last year,

22. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF_ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATE AND THE F THE RE T

Except as stated in the relevant places, the material changes, development regarding project which is ongoing
from the March, 2021 till the date of the Board Reports, there are no material changes which may affect the
Financial Position of the Company.

23. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNO RPTION El HAN RNINGS AND

* Conservation of energy - Sub-rule 3{A} of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 pertaining to the
Conservation of energy is not applicable to the Company.

= Technology Absorption - Sub-rule 3{B) of Rule B of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 pertaining to the
Technology Absorption is not applicableto the Company.

= Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: There wers no foreign exchange earnings or out flows during the year
under review.

The provisions of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to our Campany. There was no
foreign exchange inflow or Outflow during the year under review.

24, MITTE E BOARD
The Company has following Committees:

AUDIT COMMITTEE;

Pursuant to Section 177 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Audit Committee be and
is hereby reconstituted with the following members:



) | i 5
Mr. Maohit Bhandari Chairman

MNon Eecutiv&-lndﬁpendent Director

2. Mrs. Khushboo Patodi Member MNen Executive-independent Director

3, Mr. Brij Kishare Goyal Member Managing Director

o Pursuant to the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 Board hos originally constituted Audit Committee
vide its meeting doted 11.04.2032 under the Chairmanship of Mr. Mohit Bhondari (Non-Executive
Independent Director).

NOMINATI A H

Pursuant to Section 17B(1) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee be and is hereby reconstituted with the following members:

| Nen Ettv&lndﬂpendent Director

Z. Mrs. Khushboo Patodi Member Non Exacutive-independent Director

3. Mr. Bri] Kishore Goyal Member Managing Director

= Pursuant to the Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013 Board has Originolly constituted Nomination and
Remuneration Committee vide its meeting dated 25.07.2022 under the Chairmanship of Mr. Mohit Bhandari
(Non-Executive Independent Director).

25. INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR MEETING:

Pursuant to Section 173 read with Schedule |V of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, the
meeting of Independent Directors of the Company is held which comprises Fnunwing_ Directors:

1, Mr. Mahit Bhandari Chairman Mon Executive-Independent Directar

Z. Mrs. Khushboo Patodi Member Mon Executive-independent Director

26. DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES:

s The Company had no employee drawing salary/remuneration In excess of Remuneration limits
prescribed as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014,



» The Detalls with regards to the payment of Remuneration to the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel is provided in Form MGT-7 (annual return)

27. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY (CSR):

The Company has developed and implemented Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions
are applicable in view of the profits of the Company, your company was required to undertake CSR Projects
during the year 2022-23 under the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under As part of its initiatives under "Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)Y the Company has
undertaken activities as stated in Schedule Vi1

28. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.During the year under
review, the Company has not received any complaint.

29, DISCLOSURE FOR FRAUDS AGAINST THE COMPANY

In terms of the provisions of section 134(3)(c)(a} of the Companies Act 2013, there was no fraud committed
against the Company and persans who are reportable under section 141{12) by the Auditars to the Central
Government, Also there was no non reportable frauds during the year 2022-23.

30, DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which impacted the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations. Further, no penalties have been levied by RBl/any
other Regulators during the year under review,

31. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES , SECURITIES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect ta
Loans, guarantees and Investments by the Company,

32. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm's length basis
and were in the ordinary course of the business as per the details given in ADC-2 annexed as Annexure “lII”,
There were ro materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promaoters, Key
Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict of interest with the
Company at large.

33. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Bursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013, The Company have a Joint venture named BRGIPL IV KTIL LLP &
wholly owned subsidiary named B R Goyal Tollways Private Limited, their details are annexed as ANNEXURE"
0" [ACC]

34. DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from Public during the year under review but the

company has accepted depesits from the Director which are covered under exempted deposits pursuant to
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rule, 2014,



{Amount in Rs.Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars of
No. Deposits
- From Directors
Total

Opening

Balance Additien Reduction/Repaid | Closing Balance
- 1,240.35 | 14.1 - 1,254.45

1,240.35 14.1 - 1,254.45

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation to the continued co-operation received from the
Banks, Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Shareholders during the year under review. Your
Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed service of the
Executives, staffl and Workers of the Cormpany,

PLACE: INDORE
DATE: 01.08.2023
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FOR- B.R.GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN: UD4520MP2005PLC0O17479]
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ANNEXURE |

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
B.R. GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2023

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &

Administration) Rules, 2014.
|. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
- 1]ciN | UD4520MP2005PLCO17479
2. | Registration Date 01/04/2005
3. | Name of the Company B .R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited
4. Category/Sub-category of the =1
gory/ il Public Company Limited By Shares

Company -
3. | Address of the Registered office & | 3 - A Agrawal Nagar,

tontact details Indare, Madhya Pradesh,

India, 452001 ]

.| Whether |isted company Unlisted
7.| Name, Address & contact details

of the Registrar & Transfer Agent,

| if any. |

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or
maore of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

5. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
products / services Productfeervica | compary
1. Business of Caonstruction
Activities And Wind Power 4100 100 %
Generation

lil.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES —

[ No. of Companies for which information is being filled = NIL )

5. No Name And CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ % Of | Applicable
Address Of The Associate ‘ Shares Section
L Company Held
1 B R Goyal U45309MP2021PTCOS Subsldiary | #9909 | 2(a7)
Tollways Private 6731
Limited | |




IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN { Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year[As on 31-March-2022

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year[As on 31-March-2023]

Demat Physical | Total % of
Total
Shares

AL F'rumnte_.-_f‘s

Demat Physical | Total % of

Total
Share

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
| HUF

7,821,352 7821352 89.94

78213

7,821,352 <5

89,94

b) Central
Govt

_::} State
Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp,

875,000 - 75,000 10.06

875,000 - | 875000 | 1006

f}} Banks / FI

fl Any cther
(Directors/Pro
moters & thejr
Relatives &
Friends)

Sub-total (A)
{1):-

8,686,352 - | 8,696,352 100

8,6096,3

8,696, !
352 o

(2] Foreign

100

a] NRls -
Individuals

| b} Other—
Individuals

c) Bodies
Carp.

d) Banks / FI

e) Any
Other....

Total
sharehelding
of Promoter
(A) =
_(A)(1)HA)2)

8,696,352 - | B;698&,352 100

8.696,3

,352
8,696,3 -5

B. Public

Sharehalding

100

1, Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

bj Banks / FI

t) Central
Govt

d) State




Govt(s)

e} Venture
Capital Funds

f} Insurance
Companies

gl Elis

h) Forelgn
Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

i} Indian

ii) Overseas

b Individuals

i} Individual
sharehaolders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs. 1 fakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
| [specify)

NRI

Dverseas
Corporate
Bodies

Fareign
Mationals

Clearing
Members

Trusts

Foreign
Bodies - DR

Sub-tatal
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

'C, Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs




Grand Total | ' ' 8,696,3 | [ J
8,696,3 696, 696, i .
meq | & 5:i | 8,696 352[ mu} 8,69 352I ‘ 5z| mu.
|5, | SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS -
5N Shareholder's Shareh«ulding— at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year
Name the year % change
| No. of | %of | %of Shares | No. of % of | %of Shares | in
Shares total  Pledged / | Shares total Pledged / | sharehold
Shares | encumber Shares of | encumbere ing during
of the | ed to total the dtototal | ¢he year
compa | shares company | shares
= ny
RAJENDRA KUMAR ND
S P 2,456,223 | 2824 2,456,223 28.24 +) b
MO
2. GOPAL GOYAL 2,456,223 26.24 | - 2,456,223 28.24 |l cH ANGE
BAL KRISHNA _ NO
3 | GovaL angas0 | 16 aagaso| 16 CHANGE |
BRL KISHORE NO
| % | cova 2,456,216 | 28.24 "| 2436216 | 282 |
M/5, GOPAL GOYAL MO
| s. (HUF) 700 | 001 - 700 0.01 " | cHange
M/S. BAL KRISHNA NO
6. GOYAL (HUF) 700 | 001 - 700 0.01 g| -
M/S. RAJENDRA NO
T KUMAR GOYAL 00 0.01 700 0.01 - CHANGE
{HUF)
M/5. BRI KISHORE N
| | GovaL (HuR) ] I ] sl (I CHANGE
SATYANARAYAN NO
% | AGRAWAL 700 0.01 - 700 0.01 -
PRAMOD NO
10, | AGRAWAL 700 0.01 F00 .01 i CHANGE
BRG HOLDINGS NOD
11. BVT. LTD 875,000 10.06 = 875,000 10.08 - CHANGE
TOTAL 8,696,352 | 100 | 8,696,352 100
c. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING: [(No Change)
Share Holding #t Cumulative
:I' 5::::;_;:'1? Beginning Of Year Date Rea-son m::e 57_:";:::;;“& Shareholding During
(as on 01.04 .2019) & The Year
% Of % Of
Total % Of Total
Number Of | Shares Number | Total Number Of | Shares
Shares of of Shares | Shares | Shares of
Comp Of Co. Comp
any any




p. | SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS: AS PER ANNEXXURE D ATTACHED
__| (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):
5 NameOf | Share Holding At | Increase/ Cumulative
N Sharehold Beginning Of Year Date Reasan Decrease In Shareholding
. er {as on 1.04.2019) | Shareholding During The Year
Number | % Of | Number % Of | Number | % Of
Of Shares | Total | Of Total of Total
L Shares | Shares | Shares | Shares Shares |
e e Tee——— 1
E. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECOTORS AND KMVIPS:
MName Of whare .““"""" ™ Increase/ Decrease In Cumulative Shareholding During The—l
M Shareholder Seginning Of Year Shareholding Year
{as on 01.04.2019)
Number Of | % of 'No.Of | %ofTotal | Number Of % Of Total Shares
Shares Total ' Shares of | Shares Shares of the Ca.
Shares the Co.
of the
Co. -
RAIENDRA
L KUMAR 2,456,223 28.24 - = 2,456,223 78.24
GOYAL
T iy 2,456,223 | 2824 . ) 2,456,223 2224
GOYAL
BRUKISHORE o 2,456,216 28.24
3. GOYAL 2,456,216 28.24 L
| ToTAL 7,368,662 |  B4.72 - - 7,368,662 84.72
V.  |INDEBTEDNESS: i 3
| Secured l_.u;ms Total
Particulars excluding Unsecured Loans | Deposits Yiditeiiaacs
- 1 deposits N g ]
Indebtedness at the
‘beginning of the financial 13.46.44.209 12,40,35435 25,86,79,644
. vear
| i) Principal Amount
il) Interest due but not paid
i1) Interest accrued but not
| |due -
Total (i+ii+iii) 13,46,44,209 12,40,35,435 25,86,79,644
- Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year —
Addition 23,10,061 23,10,061
Reduction 4,86,08,544 4,86,08,544
I= Net Change =]
Indebtedness at the end of 8,60,35,665 12,63,45,496 21,23.81,1861
the financial year
i} Principal Amount
I ii) Interest due but not paid
ili) Interest acerued but not
due L1
Total (i+ii+iii) B8,60,35,665 12,63,45,496 21,23,81,161




VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

A|REMUNERAT:UN TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER/ NON-
[EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS o
5| Nameof Gross salary (P.A) Stock | Sweat| Commission |Ot, Total | Ceili
N MD/WTD/ Optio| Equity her ng as
Manager/ n 5 per
MED the
(a) Salary as| (b) [[c) Profits as % of | others
per Value in lieu of profit
provisions of |salary
contained in|perquisi under
section 17{1)| tes u/s |section
of the 17(2) 17(3) .
Income-tax | Income- Income-
| Act, 1961 tax Act, tax Act,
1861 |1961 =
RAIENDRA
] iy 36,00,000 2 x . LA 36,00,000
[coPaL 36,00,000 0 |
2| sovac 00, : - - - 36,00,000, -
‘BRI =
3. KISHORE 36,00,000 36,00,000
GOYAL |
TOTAL 10,800,000 - - 7 = | - 10,800,000/ -
| |BREMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS : NIL
C|REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD - NIL 1]

DATE: 01.08.2023
PLACE: INDORE

{/CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//

FOR- B.R. GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

[CIN: U04520MP2005PLCO17479)
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Bnuﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁi GOYAL

[DIN: 00012185)
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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GOPAL GOYAL

[DIN:DD012164]
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR



Annexure ]
Form A0€C-1

[Pursuant te first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

L i

: Subsidiari

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. Lacs)

Sl. No. Particulars Details '
L. | Name of the subsidiary 'BRGIPL JV KTIL LLP |
2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023

different from the holding company's reporting

_period ) ]

3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last | INR

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of

foreignsubsidiaries
4. | Share capital 1.00
5. | Reserves & surplus 12.75 _|
6. | Tolal assets 303.42
7. | Total Liabilities 303.42
. Investments
9. | Turnover 92.50
10. | Profit before taxation 6.08
11. | Provision for taxation =
12. | Prolit after taxation 4.18 =l
13. | Proposed Dividend -
14. | % of shareholding 69.99%

SI. No. Particulars Details |

1. | Name of the subsidiary B.R. Goyal Tollways Private
g iy | Limited i
2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 01,/04/2022 to 31/03/2023
different from the holding company’s reporting
period I
3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last | INR
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreignsubsidiaries
4. | Share capital 10.00
5. | Reserves & surplus [0.92)
6, | Total assets 10.68
7. Total Liabilities 10.68
B. | Investments -
9. | Turnover e
10. | Profit before taxation ' (D.29)
11. | Provision for taxation =
12. | Profit after taxation 1[0.29)
13, | Proposed Dividend R
14, | % of shareholding 99.99%




sl No. | Particulars Details
1. | Name of the subsidiary BR DSRLateriShamshabad
[ _ | Private Limited
2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 17/06/2022 to 31/03/2023
different from the holding company's reporting
| period
3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last | INR
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreignsubsidiaries
4. | Share capital - 1.00
5. | Reserves & surplus 0.25
6. | Total assets 89.91
7. | Total Liahilities 8991
8. | Investments 50.10
Investment in Fixed Deposits
9. | Turnover -
10. | Profit before taxation 0.34
11. | Provision for taxation |-
12. | Profit after taxation 0.26
13. | Proposed Dividend :
14. | % of shareholding 21.00%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. : NIL

neM
B": f

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate

Companies and Joint Ventures

(in Rs. Lacs)

Name of associates/|oint Ventures

| BRGIL LLP

315 March, 2023

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by

the company on the year end '

a. No. of shares held

b. Amount of Investment in Associates/]oint |
Venture
. Extend of Holding%

10.00

33.33%

Description of how there is significant

Contribution made in the LLP by B.R.

per latest audited Balance Sheet

~ influence Goval Infrastructure Limited
4, Reason why the assaciate /joint venture is N.A |
not consolidated |
" 5. Networth attributable to shareholding as 397.42

Profit/Loss for the year




i.  Considered in Consolidation

il Nt F.[]:]ﬁ[dt-.r_{dd in [.[l|1.~;niu.|;_|.th1|1 . :1.'-_!{1.,‘;}-]

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yvet to commence operations.: NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. :

NIL

PLACE: INDORE
DATE: 01.08.2023

//CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//
FOR- B.R.GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN: U04520MP2005PLC0O17479]
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-
ullt :_’!';'a-:.tp

AL GOPAL GOYAL
[DIN: 00012185] -.j;';a [DIN:00012164]
MANAGING DIRECTOR.Y ¢ WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR



ANNEXURE Ili

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies {Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Farm for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis- NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

iSN Names) of the MNature of Nature of Duration of the | Salient terms of Date(s) of Amou
related party cantracts / Relation contracts the contracts or | approval by the nt
and nature of | arrangement arrangements /| | arrangements Board, if any paid
relationship s/ transactions or transactions as
transaction including the adwvan
value, if any ces, if
any
1. | Rajendra Goyal Rent Directar aE2-23 ¥ 10/04,/2023 =
Expenses |1 | 1
5 | s Rent S aiiar 2022-23 : 10/04/2023 s
I Expenses .
> Brijkishore Rent tactor 2022-23 : 10/04/2023 =
Goyal Expenses M
Director 2022-23 10/04/2023
a Bal Krishna Rent having : .
’ Goyal (HUF) Expenses Significance
Influence
Director 2022-23 10/04/2023
2 Gopal Goyal Rent having 5 -
F [HUF) Expenses Significance
| Influence -
E Bal Kirishna Rent Dicickir 2022-23 . 10/04/2023 =
Goyal Expenses : ol
i Vinita Goyal Rent Income REI.“NE o 2022-23 ) 10/0472623 i
Director + W g .
L l'q:-'laa Henu‘ka Purchases | Associate Eirm 2 10/04/2023 -
Filling Station
Sarthak 2022-23 10/04/2023
10. | Innovation Put, C""t’.""‘““ Associate Firm B )
Receipts
Ltd.
11 BRG Cement Purchases Assaciate Fi 2022-23 - 10/04/2023 =
' Products /Expenses | i




l.  The Company has framed a C5R Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the same is as follows -

The Company has a CSR Policy which provides a broad framework with regard to implementation of
CH5R Activities carried out by the Company in accordance with Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2003

2. The composition of the CSR Committee;

The company does not a requirement of composing a CSR committes yet,

3. Average net profit of the company for the last three financial years: Rs. 861.63 Lakhs

Financial Year Profit
| (Bs.Lakhs)
2019-20 947.00
2020-21 730.98
2021-22 906.92
Total 2584.90
Average of the above said profit 861.63
2% of Average Profit 17.23

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2 percent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs5.17.23 Lakhs

5. Details of CSR spend during the financial year.
a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 17.23 Lakhs
b} Total amount spent during the financial year: Rs. 17.23 Lakhs
] Amount unspent of FY 2022-23, ifany: Nil

d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

(1) () (3) (4) (3) (6] (7) (8]
Projects or
programs spent on
(1) Local the projects
Areaor or
Sector other (2) t::;:nt programs Cumulative Amount
CSR in which Specify (bu dg:,;c] Sub subheads | expenditure | spent: Direct
St project or the thv.*_: State project [1) Direct _u;:lm the . nrthmu&h
Mo activity Project and e expenditure reporiing implementing
identified. Is " diil.r:'r:l P uflse on projects period agency
COVETE: where or
projects or pPrograms.
pPrograms Overheads:
was
undertaken
Indian Red | Relief for
i Cross Disaster All India = 14,54.000 - Direct
Soclety Victims
| ShriMaa | Livelihoo
Sharda d Indore, - ,
J Manav Enhance M.P. i 215 il Liipece
Avam Gou ment




Seva Trust

Police | Renovat

Stathan an of Sattul

: . ; 2.48, 0 - Direct
Complex, Molice | Mizoram ' o
Saitul Quarters |

6. Reasons for Amount unspent: N.A.
7. The CSE committee menitors the implementation of the CSR activities incompliance with our CSR
ohjectives and policy of the Company,

//CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//
FOR- B.R.GOYAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
[CIN: U04520MPZ005PLCD17479]

@R

BRI] KISHORE GOYAL
PLACE: INDORE [DIN: 00012185]
DATE: 01.08.2023 MANAGING DIRECTOR

AWl oA 'f'*\mfri‘

GOPAL GOYAL
[DIN:00012164]
HOLE TIME DIRECTOR




i Purchase/ 2072-23 10/04 /2033
12. | ‘SagarVentures Sales) Associate Firm B
Intnlﬂe‘ . - 1 e —— e e
M Ramsuls Salesy 2022-23 0042023
13. E we Purchases/ | Associate Firm
Trading
e Expenses . | I || 1
BRGIPL IV KTIL ‘ 2022-23 10/04/2023
Contract : . -
14, LLP Associate Firm
Recelpts |
Geeta Shree Toll | 2022-23 ] | 10/04/2023
| 15, Kanta |  Expenses ‘ Associate Firm ‘
|
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
B. R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited

Report on Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the attached standalone financial statements of B, R. Goyal Infrastructure
Limited which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 317 March, 2023, the Statement of Profit &
Loss, Cash Flow Statement of the Company and the notes to the financial statements for the
period ended on that date, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesald standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
|Accounting Standards] Rules 2014, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

a2} In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023

b In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the period ended on that date
and

t] In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the Act (5As). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAI} together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl'sCode of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit apirion on the st
financial statements.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in management analysis, company
performance report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In cannection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other infermation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement af
this other informatiaon; we are required to report that fact. We have nathing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013,
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements thiat pive a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial contrals, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preganng the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
EDINE concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseging the Company's financial reporting process
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the standalone financial
statements as a whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high level of
assurance, but s not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar ard
are considered material if, individually or in the aggrogate. they could reasonably be expected to




influgnce the economic decisions of wsers taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professlonal skepticlsm throughout the audit. We alsa

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraudor error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit In order to design
audit procedures thatare appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals,

# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and relateddisclosures made by management

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audht evidence obtained, whether 3 material uncertainty exists related to
events of canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going enncern, If we contlude that a materfal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone linancial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify cur opinion, Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Cormpany to cease to continue as a golng concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
inciuding thedisclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among sther matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audl. We also provide those charged
with governance with & statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarcing independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report] Orcier, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we glve
in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified (n the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Companies Act 2013, we report that:




(8] We have obtained all the information and explanations, which 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In.our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books,

(e} The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss deall with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d)  Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

1. We do not have any observation or comment on the financial statements or matters
which have any adverse effect on the functioning of the company.

2. Woe da not have any adverse gualification, reservation or adverse remark relating 1o the
maintenance of accounts and other matters connected herewith,

3. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disciosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any ather personls) or entitylies), including foreign
entities [“intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company | “Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or like on benalf
of the Uitimate Beneliciaries;

4, The management has represented, that, to the baest of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been recewved by the
company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities [“Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiares; and

5. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i} and (il) contain any material mis-statement.

6. The Company has not entered Into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards;

7. The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend in contravention with section
123 of the company's act, 2013 during the year.

(2} On the basic of the written ropresentation received from the Directors as an 31° March,
2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on
31" March, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,




(F) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financlal reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure-B*,

(Bl With respect to the Other Matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the Rule 11 of the Comipanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, In our oplnian and to
the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i] The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

iij The company has made provision as reguired by law or accounting standards
formaterial foreseeable losses,

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

ForM/s LVA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. - 3253 L

CA. Mayank Jain
Partner

M. No. — 433456
UDIN: 23433456BGUZHPARAY
Place: Indore

Date : 01.08.2023



“Annexure A" to Independent Auditors’ Report”

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements"” of our report of even date on the accounts of B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited, for
the year ended March 31, 2023

1)

i)

i)

.

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment:

In our opinion and according to Infarmation and explanation given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detalls of fixed
assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of property,
plant & equipment is being conducted in a8 phased manner by the managementwhich, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification to the extent verification was
made during the year.

In our opinlon and according to Information and explanation given to us, title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

The Company has not revalued any of itz property, plant, and eguipment {including right of
use asset or intangible assets or bath during the year,

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transaction [Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

The physical verification of inventory

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification;

The company has working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets; The quarterly returns or statements filed
by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account of the company & no material discrepancy was roticed;

. According to the information given to us, the Company has not made investments in, provided

any guarantee or security ar granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,

Therefare, provisions of clause 3 (iil) of the Order are not applicable to the Campany;




iv]

v)

vi)

vii)

b. In relation to investments, guarantees provided, and securities given, according to the

infarmation and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us,
we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans and advances provided are not
prejudicial vo the interest of the company.

In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has not been stipulated, In the absence of stipulation of repayment terms
we are unabie to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest,

. There are no amounts averdue for more than ninety days in respect of the loan granted to

Company /Firm/ LLP/ Other Parties.

. According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of

loan granted has not fallen due during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)
(e} of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

According 1o the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not granted
loansfadvances in the nature of Inans repayable on demand or without specifying any terms ar
period of repayment,

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, the Company has not given any
loans, provided any guarantees or securities In respect of loans taken by entities covered by
pravisians of Section 185 of The Companies Act, 2013;

Further, since the Company is in the business of providing Infrastructural facilities as
referred to in Schedule V| to the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of Section 186 are not
applicable to the Company:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not acceptedany
deposits from public during the year within the meaning of sections 73 ta 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules 2014 and rules framed thereunder as applicable;

As per information and explanations given to us, the company has maintained the necessarycost
records as prescribed under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

a. According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records
of the Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty,
cess and any other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:




wiil)

ix)

Name of Statue | Nature of the | Period to  Amount Amount
dues which the Involved (In Unpaid (In
amount Rs.) Rs.)
relates
Income  Tax | TDS F.Y, 2022-23 | Rs. 28080 NIL
Act, 1961 - N
Income Tax | TDS FX. 2021-22 Rs. 590 MNIL
Act, 1361 |
Income Tax | TDS FY. 2020-21 Rs. 140 NIL
Arct, 1961 |
Income Tax | TDS Priar Years | Rs. 379650 MNIL
| Act, 1961 |

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise and Value Added Tax, Goods & Service Tax which
have not been depasited on account of dispute are as under:

Period to ‘ Amount ‘ Amount
Name of the Statute Farum where dispute is which the Invilved Unpaid

amount (Rs. In | [Rs. In
di
pending relates | Crores) Crores)
_Income Tax Act, 1961 | CIT [Appeal), Bhopal FY2018-13 | 030 NI

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the procedure carried
out during the course of our audit, we have not come across any transactions not recorded in
the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income duringthe year in tax
assessments under the Incame Tax Act, 1961;

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans ar borrowings to financial
institutions, banks or government;

Accarding to the records of the Company examined by us and the information andexplanations
given to us, the company Has not been declared wiliful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government autharity;

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the company has used the loans for the object for which they wereobtained.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
Biven to us, we report that the funds raised by the co mpany on short term basishave nor been




x)

%l

Kii)

i)

siv)

utilized for long term purposes;

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
Biven to us, the company did not raised any money from any person or entity for the account of
or to pay the obligations of its associates, subsidiaries or joint ventures,

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the company did not raised any loans during the year by pledging securities held |n
their subsidiaries, Joint venture or assotiate companies.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the Information and explanations
glven to us, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offeror further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year:

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the informatian and explanations
given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally canvertible) during the year:

During the course of our examination of the books and recards of the Company and accordingto
the information and explanations given to us by the management, no fraud by the Company or
any fraud on the Company has been naticed or reported during the year:

Ne report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government;

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there are no
whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year:

In gur apinion, and according to the information and explanations given by the management,the
Company Is not a Nidhi Company, Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3of the
Order are not applicable to the Campany;

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the Information and explanations
given to us during the year, the related party transactions have been entered atarm's length
basis in ordinary course of business and are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and have been disclosed in the Financial Statements.:

In our opinian, and according to the information and explanations Eiven by the management,the
company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;




x|

d,

xvii)

xviiil

xix)

)

We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued by the internal auditors
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable;

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1534 and therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable;

In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without any valld Certificate of Registration fram Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the
reporting under paragraph clause 3 {xvi){b) of the Qrder are not applicable to the Compa ny,

The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 [xwi)lc) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in paragzaph
clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

In aur opinion, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the financial year ended 2022-
2023,

According to the information and expianations given by the management and on the basis afthe
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting Its liabllitiesexisting at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting Is based on the facts up to date of the audit report and we
neither give any assurance that all liabilitles falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due;

With respect to abligations under Corporate Social Responsibility, according to the records of




the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the company
has spent the amount to & fund specified in Schedule Vil of the Companies act but the amaunt
of Rs, 72607 remains unspent and has not been transferred till date 1o a special account in
accordance with provision of section 135 of the companies act, 2013; However the six months
limit far transfer of the said amount has not been expired till date of issuance of Auditor's
report.

nxi) According to information and explanation provided to us, thers have not been any gualifications
or adverse remarks in the audit report issued by respective auditors in case of companies
Included in consalidated financial statemeants.

For M/s LVA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. -3

CA. Mayank Jain
Partner

M. No.— 433456
Place: Indore

Date: 01.08.2023
UDIN: 23433456BGUZHP4844



B. R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited
Annexure B to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013('the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls ever financial reporting af B. R. Goyal Infrastructure
Limited ('the Company’jas of 31" March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
staternents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl), These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
cantrals that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respansibility (s to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reparting (the ‘Guidance Note'Jand the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the [CAL These Standards
and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfarm the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate Internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financlal reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial cantrals
over financial reparting, assessing the risk that the material weakness exlsts, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
af the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over finandial reporting




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control aver financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes (n accardance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; |2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary 1o permit prepardtion of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles | and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made anly in
accordance with authotizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and [3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wse, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect an the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because af the inherent limitations of internal financial controls aver financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion er improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected, Alsp, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial cantrol,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies of procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial cantrols over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March, 2023, based on the internal control aver financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India,

For M/s LVA & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reg. No. - 3259

CA. Mayank Jain
Partner
M. No, — 433456

Place: Indore
Date : 01.08.2023
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B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. {CIN - U045 20MPIO0SPLCOLTATY)
Staternent of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Al amgunts in Hs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Nates 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2077
Intome
Risyomue fram operations 0 34,529.78 20,839.24
Qther income i1 585.38 36153
Total Income 35,119.16 2120117
Expenses
C 1 te
ot of raw matenals snd 1 1035509 5.834.33
Companenty candumed
|Incrpase)/ decreass n inventorios 11 |424.13) |4,003.53)
Emplayas benilit expenses 4 1,062.10 8383
Dparating and other expensas 5 20,969.00 10, 334 BB
Total expensns 3185848 1894911
Profit befare nterest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and
prior pefiod adjustments 3,760.58 225206
Depreciation and amortizstion axpenses 26 473,85 517.85
Fingrce costs i 579.01 T739.05
Profit before tax and prior poriod adjustments 1,107.83 1,000.08
Tax expenses
Current tan 492,16 1753
Earlier Yéar Tanes
Delerred ta {2.47} 3456
Total tax oxpanses 8% 69 25108
Profit after tan for the period 1,618.14 T4T.5E
[ i - af
riar period (Incame) / edperie - met [hat £ 28 , 790
eHectl
Net Profit carried to Balance sheet 1,618.14 T40.08
Earnings per sgquity share [nominal value of share
R4 10 sach (Previous yeas: A 10|
Hasic [in fis.) 1861 851
Revised Basic [In K| 18.61 B.51
Diluted {in Ra) 1861 851
Summiry of significant accounting policies H
Thie accompanying notes aré an integral part of the firaricial statemants,
Aa per gur repart of even date
Far M/'s, LVA & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors af
Chartered Accountants B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Lid.
Firm Reg Ng. - 325977E
oy e 1 e
: “WWigd Jty, ¢ A ootrast,
CA. Ma Brij Gayal Gopal Gayal " Sl
Fartner 3 Managirg Dirpetas Director fie Y e
Memharship Mo, 433458 . Dk -0001218% DM - 00012164 [

Chisf Financial Officer

Place! indore Place: indore
Date: 0OL/08/2022 Date: 01/08/2023

Company Secretary
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B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Lid. [CIN - UD4520MP2005PLED17479)
Cashflow Statement for the vear ended 315t March 2023
(Al amounts in Rs:.Lakbis, unless otherwise stated)

IFirﬁtulin 31t March 2023 F1st March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,107.83 99216

Deprecia ion AmorTsanon 473.85 51285

fnterest ncoms (243.12) [103.63]
Fimance Cost 679.02 F35 05

Prafit/Loss on sate-of fised asseii {12.49) [32.14)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 3,0:05.00 2.047.40

Movement in Working Capital

Decrease/|increasel in trade receivables E 2 Bl LB 38

Becrgasad| |ncrease) [/ inventores [467.89] (L2147
Decreasef|Increase) in other curment 3saets I8T.44 6531

Pecreased(Increase) in loans and advances 91.72 4RS 29

ImpreazsyiDecreasa) in trade payables and current Habilities [178.55] (535.26)
Imereasef{Decrease) in provisions (8.82) Il 1%

Change in other long term lisbifinies [436.78] 117590

Chi#ngein Non Current Asssts [1.60) 5680
Cash generated/(used)] from/fin operations 21211 2,782.11

Direct tanes (paid)/refunded (net [492.18) (1753}
Eutraardmary dems

Net cash generated/[used) from/fin operating activities (&) 2.229.63 256455

Cash Flow from imvestment activities

Furchasa of fised assets including CWIF and capital advances {B12.21) (125840
Praceeds from ssle of fived sizets 1,017,91 111368
InvaEstrmiEnt in Joint Véntuie {187 48) (59.29)
nterest recenved 143.12 103 &2
Ket cash generated)|(used) from/fin investing activities (&) 251.34 {50.40)

Cash fiow from financial activities

Wit of Borrowings (1,255.77) 1152983
Imterest Pasd (679.01) (733,05}
Met cash generated)(used) from/fin financing activities (ch (1,934.78) (1,768, 88)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents [ArBeL) 546,19 H5al
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 2,177.35 1,532.08

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 1E21.54 2277135




B.R. Goyal infrastructure Lid, (CIN - UD4520MP2005PLCO1T479)
Cashilow Statement for the year ended 315t March 2023

Particulars

31st March 2023 315t March 3022
In Rs. In Hy

Components of cash & cash equivalents
Cash on hpng 19 44 1749
With banks
o CurFent Aptount 101525 443 99
Margin Money Deponn 1 78885 181587
Total cash & cash equivalents (note 18] 2.823.54 227735

Summary of significant accounting policies F

Notes:

L Comparative figures hawe boen regrouned whisrever' nacessary

I The Cash Flow statemant has been arepared under indizect method 8s seT out in the Accounting Standard

As per owr répart of sven dats
For M/ LVA & ASSOCIATES
Charterad Accountants
Firm Reg No. (3253 77E

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
B.R: Goyal Infrastructure Lid,

Wy
-:J'I.NT,I* h\\]itl_l.ﬂ
CA. Mayank Jain Brif Kish - Gopal Givwal
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No,: 433456 DN - 00012185 DiIN - 00012164
mw;;m/-/ SMI{
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
ALCS-61600
Place: Indore Place: Indose

Diate; D1/08/2013 Date! 01/08/2023




2.

B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - UD4520MPZ005SPLCO17479)

Notes to the financlal statements for the period ended 31st March, 2023

Corporate Infermation;

B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) is 2 limited com pany domiciled
in Indid and has come into existence as @ Company on conversion of M/e Balkrishng Ramkaran Goyal,
Partnership firm inta & private Company under Part IX of the Companies Act, 1956 on 1st April, 2005, On
05.5.2018, the company has converted under section 18 of the companies act inta 2 public company
formally known as B.R Geyal Infrastructure Limited. The Company is incorporated under part I1X of the
Companies Act, 1956 to carry on the business of erstwhile partnership firm. Its registered office is in Indore,
Madhya Pradesh, At present the company is engaged in the business of Construction Activities and Wind
Power Generation,

Significant Accounting policles

2.1 Basis of Accounting and preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Acceptéd Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2016,

1.2 Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements In conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
Assets and liabillties and the disclosure of contingent liabllities, at the end of the reparting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes reguiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment lasses, if
any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure refated to an itern of fixed asset s added to its book value anly if it increases
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All
other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the periad during which such
Expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured 35 the difference between the

ret disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized




2.4 Intangible Assets

25

26

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition 3t cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carred at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any,

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The
Company uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed five
years from the date when the asset is available for use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes Interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost,

Borrowing costs directly attributabie to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
oCour.

Depreciation:
Depreciation on Fixed assets is provided onp 5LM Method over the useful life of the assets.as prescribed
under part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Useful lives/ depraciation rates:

Til the year ended 31 March 2014, depreciation rates prescribed under Schedule XV were treated as
minimum rates and the company was not allowed to charge depreciation at lower rates even if such
lower rates were justified by the estimated useful life of the asset. Schedule |l to the Companies Act
2013 prescribes useful lves for flxed assets which, in many cases, are different from |ives prescribed
under the erstwhile Schedule XIV. However, Schedule || allows companies to use higher/ lower useful
lives and residual valiues if such useful lives and residual values can be technically supported and
justification for difference is disclosed in the financial statements

Considering the applicabllity of Schedule |1, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual
values of all its fixed assets. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly
reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets prescribed under Schedule ||
Hence, this change in accounting policy did not have any material impact on financial statements of the
company.

Impairment of Assets:

The company periodically tests its assets for Impairment and if the carrying values are found in excess
of value in use, the same is charged to Statement of profit and loss as per AS 2B. The impaired loss
charged to Statement of prafit and loss will be reversed in the year on the event and to that extent of
enhancement In estimate of value In use.

Inventories:

Raw materlals and consumables are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cast if the finished groducts in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or abowve
cost. Cost is determined on a First in First out Basis and includes all applicable overheads in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition,




Work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes direct materials and
labour and a propertion of manufacturing overheads based on normal aperating capacity,

2.9 Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the sconomic benefite will flow to tha
Company and the revenue can be refiably measured, The following specific recognition criteria must
also be mer before revenue is recognized:

Income from Construction activity

The company accounts for incomie on the percentage of completion basis, which necessarlly invoive
technical estimates of the percentage of completion, and costs to completion, of each contract/
activity, on the basis of which profit/ losses are accounted. Such estimates are based on the certificate
provided by the authonized person [architect),

Expenditure incurred during the progress of contracts and the estimated profits to the stage of
completion are carried forward as work in progress. Advances and progress payments, received and
receivable from customers in respect of such long term contracts in progress are disclosed under
current liabilities.

Income from Power Generation Activity

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of Lilling to Rajasthan Electricity Board.
Generally bills are raised on the basis of recording of consumption of energy by installed meters, In
case there is a drop in annual generation then Developer compensates the company for the year at the
prevailing purchase rate of State Electricity Board at the time of such shortfall during the year as per
the agreement with Developer,

Income from Rent of Commercial Property

Rent from customers under agreement to sell is accounted for on accrual basis except in cases where
ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

Sale of goods

Revenue Is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed 1o
the buyer. Gross turnover includes excise duty but does not include GST, sale tax and VAT. Excise Duty
deducted from turnover (gross) are the amaunt that i included in the amount of turnover (gross) and
not the entire amount of liability arising during the period.

2.10 Taxation
Tax expense comprises both current and deferred taxes

The provision for Current Income Tax liability is made on estimated Taxable Income under Income Tay
Act, 1961 using the applicable tax rates, after considering permissible tax exemptions, deductions and
disallowances. The current tax charge of the company includes Minimum Alternative Tax [MAT)
determined under section 115J8 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 Liability for additional taxes, if any, s
provided/ paid as and when assessments are completed. The company also complies with all the
Income computation and disclosure standards as applicable.

Provision is made for deferred tax liability arising due to timing differences between profit computed
for Income tax and the book profits as per the financial statement, for creation of a deferred tax asset
or 2 liability. This liability is recognized only if there is a reasonable certainty that the deferred tax
assets/lability will be created and are reviewed at each balance sheet date. This liability is calculated at
the regular tax rates applicable to the company,




2.11 Government Grants:
Government Granis-are recognised either in Capital reserve of as income in Statement of Profit & Loss
asand when the grant is actually received by the company depending on the nature of grant received as
enumerated in Accounting Standard 12 "Accounting for Government Grants” and the conditions for the
recognition of Government grants are met as per Accounting Standard 12 "Accounting for Government
Grants™.

2.12 Employee Benefits:
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is 3 defined contribution scheme. The contributions
to the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the
contributions are due.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits s determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses arise due 1o difference In the actual experience and the assurned parameters and also due to
changes in the assumptions used for valuation. The Company recognizes these actuarial gains and
lasses immediately in the statement of profit and loss as income or expense.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when 3 plan is curtailed or settlement ocours, the
portion of the changed benefit related to past service by emploviees, or the gain or loss on curtailment
or settlement, is recognized immediately in the profit or loss account when the plan amendment or
when a curtailment or settlement ocours.

2.13 Provisions and contingencies;
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, It Is
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
refiect the current best estimates.

The company follows the-policy for provision for doubtful debts as specified bolow:

S.No Particulars % of provision
1 | Debtors outstanding for more than 1 year 5%
i Debtors outstanding for more than 2 years 10%
| 3 | Debtors putstanding for more than 3 years 15%

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the eccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
contral of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there 15 a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liabllity but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

2.14 Earnings per Share:




Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharehalders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eguity shares.

2.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comgprise cash in hand, at bank
{excluding margin deposits with banks).

2.16 Bad-Debts:
Bad-Debts are written off to Statement of profit and loss as and when the debt s determined as un-
realizable as per the opinion of the Management.

2.17 Cash flow statement:
Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Accounting Standard 3 -Cash flow Statement. Cash and Cash equivalents for cash flow statement
comprises cash at bank and in hand and bank deposits

2.18 Foreign currency translation

{i} Initial recognition

Fareign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the forewgn currency at the
date of the transaction

(ii) Conversion

At the year-end, monetary assets in forelgn currency are translated at the rates of exchange at the
balance sheet date and resultant gain or loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

(iif) Exchange differences

All exchange differences arising on setttement/ conversion on foreign currency transactions are included
in the Profit and Loss Account, except in cases where they relate ta the acguisition of fived assets, in
which case they are adjusted in the cost of the corresponding asset.

2.19 Share Premium Account
Share premium account includes difference between consideration received in respect of shares and
face value of shares

2.21 Provision for doubtful debt

The company has policy far provision for doubtful debts as specified below:

5. No Particulars % of provision
L 1 Debtors gutstanding for mare than 1 year 5%
| 2 | Debtors outstanding for more than 2 years 10%
| 3 | Debtors outstanding for more than 3years | 15%
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LVA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRNo.325977E

(Formerly known as Lopa Verma& Associntes)
MEW DELH] | KOLKATA | HYDERABAD | CHENMAL | VELLORE| INDORE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
B. R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of B. R. Goyal
Infrastructure Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its Joint Venture BRGIPL JV KTIL LLP
(collectively referred to as “the Joint Venture” or “the Group”), and its subsidiary B.R. Goyal
Tollways Pvt. Ltd., BR DSR Lateri Shamshabad Pvt. Ltd. and its associate BRGIL LLP which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, the consolidated Cash flow Statement of the Company for the period ended on that
date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information{hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated financial statements”).

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules 2014, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

a] In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31,2023;

b} In the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the period ended
on that date and

c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on
that date

143, SNEH NAGAR, SAPNA SANGEETA ROAD,
INDORE- 452001,




Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consofidated Financial Stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consclidatedfinancial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Infarmation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
informatjon.The other information comprises the information included in management analysis,
company performance report but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's repart therean,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing se, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing te report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, Directors of the Holding Ea '
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosin



related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management of
Company either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Holding Company are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidatedfinancial
staternents,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

& Dbtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

e« Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies wsed and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going cancern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of theconsolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidatedfinancial statements
represent the underlying transactions and ewvents In a manner that achieves fair
presentation. o




Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and gualitative factors in (I} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) We do not have any observation or comment on the financial statements or matters which
have any adverse effect on the functioning of the company.

c) We do not have any adverse gualification, reservation or adverse remark relating to the
maintenance of accounts and other matters connected herewith.

d) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books.

e) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

f}  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules2014.




g} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexura-A",

h) On the basis of the written representations recejved from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31" March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its Joint Venture incorporated in India,
none of the Directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31%
March 2023 from being appointed as a Director of that company in terms of sub-section 2 of
Section 164 of the Act,

i)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our infermation and according to the explanations given to us;

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position

il. The company has made provision as required by law or accounting standards for material
foreseeable losses.

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the company.

iv. The management has represanted that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever [“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the




Jo  The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend in contravention with section 123
of the company's act, 2013 during the year.

k. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards

(2} Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, the said is
not applicable on the Consolidated Financial Statements .

For LVA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
[Registration No. 325977E)

CA. Mayank Jain
Partner

M No.: 433456
UDIN: 23433456BGUZIVE209
Place: Indare

Date: 01.09.2023



B. R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited
Annexure B to the Auditor’'s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013('the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of B. R. Goyal Infrastructure
Limited ('the Holding Company') & its subsidiary company B.R. Goyal Tollways Pyvt. Ltd, BR DSR Lateri
Shamshabad Pvt, Ltd. , its jointly controlled entity BRGIL JV KTIL LLP as of 31* March, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Boards of Directors of the Group companies, which are company incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrals based an the internal contral over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl}. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of Its business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial informatian, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and
Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial contrals with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Group companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as nacessary to permit preparation of financial statements In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles , and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made anly in
accardance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals with reference to conselidated financial
statements, Including the possibility of collusion ar iImproper management averride of contrals, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial contrals with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Group
companies, which are company incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial contrals with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial contrals
with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the 1CAl

For M/s LVA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No, —325977E e,
I E;E o 1',; -;,_{ A :‘l'. _'-:\X

CA. Mayank Jain
Partner

M. No. — 433456
Place: Indore
Date : 01.09.2023







B.R. Goyal Infrastructurg Ltd. {CIN - U045 20MP200GPLCO7S7E)

Consolidated Balance Shoot as at 31st March, 2023
(Al amounts in Bs Lakhs, unbess otherwese stated)

Particulars Mates 315t March, 2023 31: March, 2022
Equity @nd liabilitios
Shareholder's funds
Share capital 3 BE9,64 BE284
Reservis and surplus 4 9,509,21 7EFLE
10,478,85 B8.743.48
Minority Interast 4.74 .30
Non-current labilitias
Long-term barrowings B 1,760,329 1,875
Delerred 1ax labifithes (Mat) 7 17202 1745
Other long tarm labifithes S 2,374,089 181048
Long-tarm provisoni [ 56.15 E1.85
#,362.55 4,908 08
Current isbilities
Short-tarm borrowings ) 2.403.24 3,460.13
Trade payables 10(a)
Dues g Micro, Small and
Meadium Entenprises (43 ] no3
Dues b0 pihers 1,433.79 264,15
Other curnent liabilities 10{b) 517.00 61598
Short-term prowisions B 115.06 131.39
4,875.71 BB80.68
Tatal 19,725.84 20,338.54
Assets
Non-Currgnt assets
Property, Plant and Eguipment
and Intangibie Assels
Proparty, Plant and Equigment 11 4,694,16 5,351.13
Intangitie rssats 13 Q.30 0.39
Nen gurrent investmants 14 30867 10000
Long-term loans and advances 15 621.39 61812
Othér non-current assats ig - 1.66
5,624.52 5,981.31
Current assets
Impantories 18 5,715.70 5,299,210
Trade recelvabies ir 2,E%09.,02 3,468.26
Cash and bank balanges 18 2,852,562 431772
Short-term lnans and advances 15 2,0E5.63 27230
Other curren? assets 19 504.35 28a.7e
14,100.32 15,347.22
Total 19,725.84 20,338 58
Summary of significant accounting policies p

Tha accompanying notes are an integral part of the linantial statements.

As per our report of even date

Far M5 LA & ASSOCIATES
Charterad Accountants
Flemn Teg No: 325977E

AN

CA. Mayank kvin
Partmer
Membership Mo 433456

Place: Indore
Date: 01/03/1023

For and on bohalf of the Board of Directars of

Bri| & Goyal
dEnaging Director
DiN - 00012185

|l
€4, Dasharath Tamar
Chief Financial Dfficer

Place: Indore
Dale: 01/09/2023

L'IL ;

B.R, Goyal Infrastructure Ltd.

SUTE I
Gopal Gayal
Dirgctor
DIN - D001 2164

sheetal Meena

Company Secratary
ACS-61600



B.%. Goyal Infrastructure Lbd, [CIN - UDA520MPZO0SPLOOL1TATS)

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs.Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Motes Iist Mnrj-;, 2023 3lst March, 2022
Income
Revenue fram operations 20 34,622.29 1248826
Other income 21 F07.45 375.06
Total Income 35,329.74 22,863.32
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and 22 10,251.49 827441
CoImponents consumed
{Increase)/decrease in inventories 3 {340,97) |638.02)
Employes benefit expenses 24 1,062.10 79353
Operating and ather expensss 25 20,979.05 11,568.74
Total expenses 31,951.67 20,588,685
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and
prior period adjustments 3,378.07 2,264.67
Depreciation and amortization expanses 6 473.85 512,95
Finance costs 27 B79.01 732.09
Profit before tax and prior period adjustments 222521 1012.63
Tax expenses
Current tax 484,17 221.63
Earlier Year Taxes - 0.34
Defarred tax {2.47) 34.56
Total tax expenses 491.70 25654
Profit after tax for the period 1,733.51 756.08
Prior period {income) / expense - net (et of tax
effect) EL B.03
Minority Interest 4.14 0.30
Met Profit carrled to Balance sheet 1,729.37 748.06
Earnings per eguity share [nominal value of share
Hs. 1D each (Previous year: Rs. 10]]
Basic (in Rs.} 19.89 851
Revised Basic (in Ra) 19.89 £.51
Dlluted (in fs.) 19,89 851
Summary of significant accounting policies Z
The accompanying notes are an integeal part of the financial statemments,
As per our report of even date
For M/fs, LVA B ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants m\\ B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd.
Firm Reg No, : 325977€ ’,f\;/:‘l,f——-\{ »
F? ’ » =\
Rl | E @Q PR Slhigd
€A, Mayank Jain : = Brij oyal Gopal Goyal
Partner ':'r:fl 1 i :‘1:_-.- Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 433456 . L0110 DIN - DO012185 DIN - DO012154
Browtl — ﬂ.;/_»ﬁﬁ’}/
CA. nmﬁuﬁ: Sheetal Meena
Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary
ACS-61600

Pace: Indare
Date: 01/09/2023

Place: Indore
Date: 01/08/2023



B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd, (CIN - U04520MP2005PLCO1T7479)

Consolidated Cashflow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2023

{All amounts in Rs.Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

[Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,225.21 1,004.23
Depreciation/Amortisation 473.85 51295
Interest income (250,00) (116.75)
Finance Cost 679.02 39.05
Profit/Loss on sale of fixed assets {12.49) (93.14)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 3,115.59 2,046.34
Movement in Working Capital

Decrease/{Increase| in trade recelvables 560.24 (873.54)
Decrease/{Increasa) in inventories (416.49) (655.85)
Decrease/{Increase) in other current assets 485.39 625.11
Decrease/{Increase) in loans and advances 182.68 307.02
Increase/f(Decrease) in trade payables and current liahilities (722.75) 3.09
Increase /| Decrease) in provisions (8.14) 22.50
Change in other long term liabilities (436.39) 1.260.02
Change In Non Current Assets (1.60) 127.01
Cash generated/{used) framfin operations 2,767.53 2,861.70
Direct taxes {paid)/refunded {net) (494.17) (221.63)
Extraordinary |tems -
MNet cash generated/(used) from/fin operating activities (a) 2,273.35 2,640.07
Cash Flow from Investment activities

Purchase of fixed assets including CWIF and capital advances (812.21) {1,258.40)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,017.91 1,113.68
Investment in loint Ventura (298.67) [9.29]
Interest recelived 250.00 169.88
Met cash generatad/{used) fromfin investing activities (B} 157.03 15.86
Cash flow from financial activities

Met of Borrowings {1,176.75) {1,155.30)
Interest Paid (679.01) {739.05)
Net eash generated f{used) from/fin financing activities (c) {1,855.76) {1,894.35)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 574.62 761,58
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,317.72 1,555.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,892.34 2,317.36




B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - U04520MP2005PLCO17479)
Cashflow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2023

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
In Rs. in As.
Components of cash & cash equivalents
Cash an hand 20.45 12.11
With banks
on Current Account 1,032.50 482.74
Margin Money Deposit 1,839.67 1,815.87
Total cash & cash equivalents (note 18) 2,892 62 2,317.72
D.28 0.35

Summary of significant accounting policies
MNotes:

1. Comparative figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

2.The Cash Flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard .

Az per our report of even date

For M/s. LVA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg Mo, :325977E

CA. Mayank Jain
Partner
Membership No,: 433456

Place: Indore
Date: 01/09/2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd.

A\

Brij

=

Gayal

Managing Director

DIN - 00012185

¥

CA.

A

asharath Tomar

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Indore

Date: 01/09/2023

_'I'J:" '\l,ll-;-c]" ‘.é-::-tf o .f"‘l

Gopal Gayal
Director
DIN - 00012164

Sheetal Meena
Company Secretary
ACS-61600
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B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - UD4520MP2005PLC017479)
CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31* MARCH, 2023

1. Company Overview

2.1

B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) is a limited company domiciled in
India and has come into existence as a Campany on conversion of M/s Balkrishna Ramkaran Goyal, Partnership
firm into a private Company under Part IX of the Companies Act, 1956 on 1st April, 2005. On 09.5.2018, the
company has converted under section 18 of the companies act into a public company formally known as B.R
Goyal Infrastructure Limited. The Company is incorporated under part X of the Companies Act, 1956 to carry
on the business of erstwhile partnership firm. Its registered office is in Indore, Madhya Pradesh, At present the
company is engaged in the business of Construction Activities and Wind Power Generation,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP).The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply
in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act') read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies so adopted in the preparation of financial
statements are consistent with those of previous year.

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements of the subsidiary company used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same
reparting date as of the company.

The cansolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis;

The financial statements of the company and its subsidiary have been combined on line-by-line basis by adding
together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Intra group balances, intra
group transactions, and resulting unrealized profits are eliminated in full. Unrealized losses resulting from intra
group transactions are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.

When the cost to the parent of its investment in subsidiaryis less than the parent’s portion of equity of the
subsidiary at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made, the difference is treated as'Capital
Reserve' in the consalidated financial statements.

Minaritles Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
consolidated Balance Sheet separately from liabilities and equity of the company's shareholders.

Minority Interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

{a) The amount of equity attributable to minority art the date on which investment in subsidiary is made,and

{b) The minority share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship came into
existence.

Minority interest in the net assets of Net profit/loss for the year of conselidated subsidiary Is identified and
adjusted against profit.




B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - UD4520MP2005PLC017479)
CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31* MARCH, 2023

2.2

23

2.4

2.5

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liahilities in future periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value anly if it increases the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on
existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment lossas, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company
uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not exceed five years from the date
when the asset is available for use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded
as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction er production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.




B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - UD4520MP2005PLC017479)
CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH, 2023

2.6 Depreciation:

Depreciation on Fixed assets is provided based on 5LM Meathod as stated in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act,
18956 till the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2014. From the current year the same is provided on SLM Method
over the useful life of the assets as prescribed under part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Useful lives/ depreciation rates:

Till the year ended 31 March 2014, depreciation rates prescribed under Schedule X1V were treated as minimum
rates and the company was not allowed to charge depreciation at lower rates even if such lower rates were
justified by the estimated useful life of the asset. Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 prescribes useful lives
far fixed assets which, in many cases, are different from lives prescribed under the erstwhile Schedule XIV.
However, Schedule |l allows companies to use higher/ lower useful lives and residual values if such useful lives
and residual values can be technically supported and justification for difference is disclosed in the financial
statements

Considering the applicability of Schedule II, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of
all its fixed assets. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflact its estimate of
the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets prescribed under Schedule Il. Hence, this change In
accounting policy did not have any material impact on financial statements of the company.

2.7 Impairment of Assets:

The company periodically tests its assets far impalirment and if the carrying values are found in excess of value
in use, the same is charged to Statement of profit and loss as per AS 28. The impaired loss charged to Statement
of profit and loss will be reversed in the year on the event and to that extent of enhancement in estimate of
value in use.

2.8 Inventories:

Raw materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and
other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a
First in First out Basis and includes all applicableoverheads in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes direct materials and labour
and a propartion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

2.9 Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:



B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - UD4520MP2005PLC017479)
CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31* MARCH, 2023

Income from Construction activity

The company accounts for income on the percentage of completion basis, which necessarily involve technical
estimates of the percentage of completion, and costs to completion, of each contract/ activity, on the basis of
which profit/ losses are accounted Such estimates arebased on the certificate provided by the authorized
person architect).

Expenditure incurred during the progress of contracts and the estimated profits to the stage of completion are
carried forward as work In progress. Advances and progress payments, recejved and recelvable from customers
in respect of such long term contracts in progress are disclosed under current liabilities.

Income from Power Generation Activity

Revenue from power supply Is accounted for on the basis of billing to Rajasthan Electricity Board. Generally bills
are raised on the basis of recording of consumption of energy by installed meters. In case there is a drop in
annual generation then Developer compensates the company for the year at the prevailing purchase rate of
State Electricity Board at the time of such shortfall during the year as per the agreement with Developer.

Income from Rent of Commercial Property

Rent from customers under agreement to sell is accounted for on accrual basis except in cases where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful,

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the

buyer. Gross turnover includes excise duty but does not include GST, sale tax and VAT, Excise Duty deducted
from turnover (gross) are the amount that is included in the amount of turnover (gross) and not the entire
amaunt of lfability arising during the period.

2.10 Taxation

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred taxes

The provisian for Current Income Tax liability is made on estimated Taxable Income under Income Tax Act, 1961
using the applicable tax rates, after considering permissible tax exemptions, deductions and disallowances. The
current tax charge of the company includes Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) determined under section 11518 of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Liability for additional taxes, if any, is provided/ paid as and when assessments are
completed. The company also complies with all the Income computation and disclosure standards as applicable.
Pravision is made for deferred tax liability arising due to timing differences between profit computed for
Income tax and the book profits as per the financial statement, for creation of a deferred tax asset or a liability.
This liability is recognized only if there is a reasonable certainty that the deferred tax assets/liability will be
created and are reviewed at each balance sheet date. This liability is calculated at the regular tax rates
applicable to the company.

2.11 Government Grants:

Government Grants are recognised either in Capital reserve or as income in Statement of Profit & Loss as and




B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - U04520MP2005PLC017479)
CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31" MARCH, 2023

Accounting Standard 12 "Accounting for Government Grants” and the conditions for the recognition of
Government grants are met as per Accounting Standard 12 "Accounting for Government Grants”,

2.12 Employee Benefits:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the
provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions are due.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Methad,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, Actuarial gains and losses arise due to
difference in the actual experience and the assumed parameters and also due to changes in the assumptions
used for valuation.The Company recagnizes these actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of
profit and loss as income or expense,

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed or settiement occurs, the portion of the
changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment or settlement, is
recognized immediately in the profit or loss account when the plan amendment or when a curtailment or
settiement occurs.

2.13 Provisions and contingencies:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The company follows the policy for provision for doubtful debts as specified below:

' 5. No Particulars ' % of provision
| 1 Debtors outstanding for more than 1 year | 5%

| 2 Debtors outstanding for more than 2 years 10%

| 3 Debtors outstanding for more than 3 years 15%

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
reguired to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not recoghize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

2.14 Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the etfects of all dilutive potential equity shares.




B.R. Goyal Infrastructure Ltd. (CIN - U04520MP2005PLC017479)
CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH, 2023

2.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand, at bank (excluding

margin deposits with banks).

2.16 Bad-Debts:

Bad-Debts are written off to Statement of profit and loss as and when the debt is determined as un-realizable as
per the opinion of the Management.

2.17 Cash flow statement:

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Accounting
Standard 3 -Cash flow Statement. Cash and Cash equivalents for cash flow statement comprises cash at bank
and in hand and bank deposits.

2.18 Foreign currency translation
(i) Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the forelgn currency
amount the exchange rate between the reperting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction

{ii) Conversion

At the year-end, monetary assets in forelgn currency are translated at the rates of exchange at the balance sheet
date and resultant gain or loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

(iii) Exchange differences

All exchange differences arising on settlement/ conversion on fareign currency transactions are included in the
Profit and Loss Account, except in cases where they relate to the acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they
are adjusted in the cost of the corresponding asset.

2.19 Share Premium Account

Share premium account includes difference between consideration received in respect of shares and face value
of shares

2.20Provision for doubtful debt

The company has palicy for provision for doubtful debts as specified below:

| S.No Particulars ! % of provision [
1 | Debtors outstanding for more than 1 year | 5% |

2 Debtors outstanding for more than 2 years 10% |
3 | Debtors outstanding for more than 3 years | 15%
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13 Detaits O Dues To Micra Ard Small Entorpeiioes As Defined Under The MSMED act, 2006
The dentifcation af Mecre, Seall and Medium entorprises b= based an the management’s Bnowledge of their status. The Compary has reteived intsmations from the
falimwing supoliers reganging their status wndes “The Micro, Smaf and Medism Enterprises Developmeent Sct, 008°,
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Sarla Gaysl
Upgial Gorpal
Lipiia ayal
Yk Goyal
Karchan Goyal
Wanshila Gayal

Entorprises awer which ey miamagem ent parionned
have signifcant influence | [Azsociste Firma)

Aaspcinbes aver which refafives of hey managernent personns!
have significant influsnco | [Associbe Firms)

[£8 Gergal Hesbeings Pt Ld,
G Canstrustions Put. Lt
Samargret Agritech Pt Ltd
Hilghway Enterarases Pt, Ll

Sarthek Innovation Pyt LEd.
Guarta Shraw Toll Kanta

Iotan Panuks SO
HewGeetn Shree Tofl Kanta
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Shant Conatruciicni

Shlhir Caratraction & Devalupan

Super dgma

Sagar Ventures

SRE Cement Products
Falajfi Dvilopers
Sagar Minesals
Samarth Developers
s Banaks Trading
Sru@n Constructans

B (50 LATERI SHAMSHABAD MWT. LTD,

BRGILLLF

Seirwil Roenit 1Y
Dwemrka Constructiorn
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X6 Additionsd Begalaiory Information

Rowrawimes frarm hanks snd fmandal institutions
The Company his Dorrawings fram banks on the bass of Security of Curtent Aivets, The guarls=}y Beturm or Statements of Current dssecs fied by the Compeny with
Banks are in agresment with the boosks of sctounts and there wei= po Matarial Diregancies natod.

Details of Benami Property hisld

The campany dons it hald any Serami Property and no proceedings have Baare instiated an of drs p e it {he Company for halding benami aroperty under
the: Bersmi Tramsactiony {Prohibitian) Act, 1988 (45 of 198R) and Rulel mede thereundas,

Title deeds af immavable Property
Titie de=dz of Immaouable Property heid in the Akme of Comesny.

Iintangible assets under devolopment
Tha Compdry does ool Bald ey inknngible gieets under development.

Loasrs or Advanges
The Compary has not green any Loans ar Advances in the natuse af lam granted o promatens, Chrectars, K6P1 and the related garbes [ae Selined imdes Compares
ACt, 20013, wrthior sevrally oe feintly with any ather persom,

Dwtaity of Revalsad Property
Tha Carmpany bas oot Revalissd ity Proserty; Plont and Eoal prent dunng ihe e

Willhal Dafaulter by say Bank) Finsncial Institution/ Other Lender
The company i1 nok declared as wellul defaulbar by any bank | Firencesd inkiutan [ obher bender

Relatiorihip with $tmick off companies
The campany hat Ao such transaction with eny Sruck off Company.

Hegistration of Charges or sathfacton with Rrglstrar of Companies(ROC)
Thereare np Charges aundding for Regrbo ation with Regabter of Companies (ROT)

Compliance with namber of layers of companies
Tho compesny has cermplied with clsise (§7) of section @ of the Act read et (e Comp, i tinm an et of wpers) fales, 2017,

Compliance with approved Schame(s) of Arvangsm ents
Thm Company has il anterad snbo any Scheme of arrangement approved by Campatont Autharity,

Utiliization of Bermmwed Fund and Shars Premium
The ¥ hias poh ad f of lanned ar inwedted funds {elther borrowed funds or shane premiem o any other soueces or kind of funds) to sny ather person(s) ar

erility[es)
The cormpany has nat retebed 2y fande fram aey other pefion|s] o enbtyles)

Undischosed incame
Thare are na trarsactons which aré nol recorded m boola of scoousts e, thars i no andiscloesd Ineoma

Crypbo Currency or Virtual Carrency
Thie campany has nol fraded of imeestead in Crypto Currency o Vinual Cormncy.

For and on behail of the Boand of Directors el
.. Goyal Infrestructirs Lid.

Far M VA & dssocinted
Chartered Arcountarts
Firen Rag Mo, : 3X5077E
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